
/ --:--, 

' ' 

' 

t 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 
Senate Committee on. ... -~.9.~~J;::g.§._.~.n4 ... J!9:P..Q;i;:'. .......•.• -···········································-····-···-·····-···-·····-····· 
Date·-······· April._ 2 _, 19 7 9 
Page· ................ 1 ............. -·-··········-

The meeting was called to order at 1;30 p.m. in Room 213~ 
Senator Thomas R. C. Wilson was in the chair. 

PRESENT; Senator Thomas R.C. Wilson, Chairman 
Senator Richard E. Blakemore, Vice Chairman 
Senator Don Ashworth 
Senator Clifford E. Mccorkle 
Senator Melvin D. Close 
Senator c. Clifton Young 
Senator William H. Hernstadt 

ABSENT: Norte 

OTHERS 
PRESENT: 

Fred Hillerby, Exec. Director, Nevada Hospital Association 
Noel A. Clark, Director, Department of Energy 
Richard McNeel. 
Heber Hardy, Chairman, Public Service Commission 
Gary M. Soule, Sr. Vice President, Sierra Pacific Power 
William C. Branch, Treasurer, Si~rra Pacific Power Company 
Joe McKibben, Vice President, Sierra Pacific Power'Company 
Janet Mac!D-onal4, Commissioner, Public Service Commission 
Clark J. Guild, Jr. Southwest Gas Corporation 
Stan Warren, Nevada Bell Telephone Company 
Chuck King, Central Nevada Telephone Company 

I 

Rick Pugh, Executive Director, Nevada State Medical Association 

SB 385 .Allows new application by public utility for change 
of rate that is part of pending application and abolishes 
requirement of posting new or amended schedules at its 
stations. 

Joe McKibben, Vice President Finance and Accounting, Sierra Pacific 
Power Company, presented prepared testimony in support of SB 385 
(see Exhibit Al. Mr. McKibben explained that each rate case is in
dividual and stands by itself. He continued that a strict interpre
tation of the statutes would prohibit Sierra from introducing new 
evidence and including the plant in rate base. 

Chairman Wilson stated the intent of the legislation was to prevent 
over-filing. He stated that this language is too broad. 

Senator Hernstadt suggested language that might be more satisfactory 
as follows: "the commission shall have a right and sole option to 
reconsider". 

Mr. McKibben stated that Sierra Pacific's concern is the timing 
since the Commission has 30 days in which to reject or accept the 
application and an additional 60 days for further testing would be 
too costly to Sierra Pacific in terms of time. 

Heber Hardy, Chairman, Public Service Commission, introduced Janet 
MacDonald, Commissioner, PSC. Ms. MacDonald stated that there are 
numerous changes in this legislation that go far beyond that indicated 

(Committee Mlnule5) 

S Form 63 

•-34 i 
8770 ~ 



' 

' 
S Form 63 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on. .... _.Commerce ... and ... Labor········-··········-····-····················--·····---·-······-··· 
Date:-.. - .. .Ap..r.il .. ..2 . .,....l.9.7.9 
Page: ........ - .. -2 ______ _ 

(SB 385 - testimony continued) 

by Mr. McKibben. She continued that the application is only a 
few pages, but that the supporting schedules and important data 
are buried in volumes of pages and difficult to pick out. Ms. 
McDonald referred to page 2, line 2, and suggested that "and" 
replace "or" because policy considerations are essential in de
termining rates. She stated that paragraph 5 be deleted because 
it is not enforceable, but if it were to remain, language such 
as "the 30 day limit''does not apply if paragraph 4 has not been 
complied with. 

Senator Mccorkle suggested that the tools are available to the 
Commission but are not being use~_ for enforcement. 

Chairman Wilson suggested that it would state "A public utility 
may set forth as jutification for a rate increase items of ex
pense or rate base which are the subject of litigation or judi
cial review, or which have been considered and disallowed by the 
Commission, only if those items are clearly and separately iden
tified in the application and supporting schedules." 

Chairman Wilson clarified that if the utility doesn't comply and 
the PSC doesn't discover it within 30 days, the Commission loses 
jurisdiction. 

Senator Ashworth stated that tile burden should be placed on the . 
applicant. 

Senator Blakemore stated th-at the interests and the intentions 
should be clearly stated in the first few pages of the application 
and the rest be back-up ~aterial. 

In reply to Senator Ashworth's question, Mr. Hardy explained that 
an example could be a Nevada Power case where there was an adjust
ment to coal burning and operating expense. A previous case indi
cated that the Commission would not allow an adjustment which 
occurred outside the test period to be included in the test period. 
Mr. Hardy continued that in the next applicaton, Nevada Power in
cluded their operating expense for coal being burned. 

Ms. MacDonald continued that another problem is depreciation be
cause it's possible that the Commission has disallowed depreciation 
for the certification period and then the utility will try to hide 
it. The utility should clearly indicate the depreciation, if there 
is any, in the first of the application. She explained to Senator 
Blakemore that when an application is filed, unit increases have to 
be estimated; within 6 months the "actual" must be provided and the 
Commission allows the lower of actual or estimated. She stated. 
there are many methods to calculate the cost of debt. Ms. MacDon
ald explained that the Commission had stated that inventory losses 
in cost of fuel burned could not be included, and the utility had 
hidden them. 

?35 
(Committee Mbmtes) 

8770 ~ 



t 

' 

I 
S Form 63 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 
Senate Committee on ........ g?.~§.~_g_g ... 9.-n.9: ... !:i.~.9.9..;' .......................................................... -·-·····-················-···· 
Dat~:: ...... _Ap.:r.il .... 2.f·-·l.9-7.9 
Page······-·······-···· 3 _ .. ---···············-
( SB .385 - continued) 

Noel A. Clark, Director, Department of Energy, stated that he was 
appearing as a concerned consumer and that he opposed SB 385. He 
said that about 4 years ago a similar bill was introduced which 
was primarily designed to prevent pyramiding of rate cases, and 
that the current statute is adequate. He stated that, if there is 
a problem, rules and regulations should be promulgated rather than 
passing legislation. Mr. Clark commented that the PSC has this au
thority already. 

In answer to Senator Blakemore's question, Mr. Clark explained 
that there is not a clear and distinct line of understanding be
tween the utilities and the PSC, and that the rules should be pre
cisely drafted so there is. no misunderstanding. He continued that 
$10 million is a rather severe penalty for poor accounting practices 
and it should be the part of the utilities to be more accurate. 

Mr. McKibben explained to Chairman Wilson that Sierra Pacific had 
filed a rate case which had cl~arly and separately shown what had 
been previously disallowed, and it had been dismissed. 

Mr. Hardy suggested that the proposed changes in the language would 
correct that problem. 

Chairman Wilson closed the public hearing on Senate Bill 385. 

SB 386 Exempts additions to existing public utility plants 
from certain environmental requireme~ts. 

Gary M. Soule, Senior Vice President, Sierra Pacific Power Company, 
presented prepared testimony in support of SB 386 (see Exhibit B). 

Mr. Soule answered Senator Young's question by stating that all of 
the major transmission additions in the past and in the immediate 
future will be at 230 kvs, which is why the voltage was set at 200 
and 345 kvs. Lower voltage levels are becoming more of a service 
than bulk power transmission. He clarified that "major" facilities 
are really generating plants with bulk power transmission but that 
"minor" facilities could be built a mile or two at a time and the 
voltage would be set at 200 kvs. 

Mr. Soule explained to Senator Mccorkle that a substation is a dis
tributing point and considered an associated facility and cannot 
operate independently. 

Chairman Wilson observed that the language is confusing, that there 
is a need for legal jurisdiction on the distinction between "major" 
and "minor". 

Senator Close stated that the language in section 1 is too broad~ 

Mr. Soule explained that the intent is to define "unit" as a utility 
facility. He continued that npermitting" would be required if the 
facility were outside an incorporated area. He stated that the 

?36 
(CommJltee Minutes) 

sno ~ 



t 

I 

I 
S Form 63 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislo.ture 

Senate Committee on ........ Comrne r ce ... and ... Labor········-············-····-··········-······--······································· 
Date: ....... :.AQ.:r.il .... 2.t·-.l~.7.9 
Page· .................. 3. ....... ·-····-·······--

(SB 386 - testimony continued) 

original intent was that a "plant" is all facilities of a utility, 
but "plant" is not defined in the statute, and that "utility facil
ities" should be generating units, transmission lines, and substa
tions over 200 kvs. Mr. Soule agreed with Senator Close that 
"Commence to construct•~ does not include additions to generating 
units but would include additions to generating plants which would 
be generating units. An addition to a generating unit would be any 
minor thing, such as a pump or motor, and would not be required to 
come under the provisions of the act. A major addition would be 
additional cooling, cooling water, a cooling tower or cooling pond. 

Senator Close stated that an operating deficiency should not be sub
ject to an environmental study. 

Mr. Soule explained that minor additions within an existing fenced 
and impacted area would not neaessarily be cause for an environmen
tal review. 

Mr. Soule explained to Senator Mccorkle that the Tracy plant con
sists of one 110 megawatt unit, one 83 megawatt unit and one 60 
megawatt unit. He continued that because it would take an additi
tional generating unit if the Tracy plant were to double in size, 
it would have to file a new application under the environmental 
protection act. -

Chairman Wilson interrupted the hearing on SB 386 for Senator Wil
bur Faiss' testimony on SB 358. 

SB 358 Relates to medical care; requiring consent of 
hospital patient before a consulting or addi
tional physician is engaged by his primary 
physician. 

Senator Faiss stated that this bill pertains to medical care and 
it provides that any physician or osteopathic physician who is 
primarily responsible for the care and treatment of a patient in 
a hospital shall, before securing the additional services in the 
care and treatment, obtain the consent of the patient,a parent, or 
legal guardian of the patient, or other person responsible for the 
debts of the patient. The consent must be on a printed form, filled 
in with an explanation in general terms of the need for securing the 
additional services; and the approximate fees which are likely to 
be charged for these services. A physician or osteopathic physi
cian who is treating a patient need not obtain the required consent 
if one, obtaining the consent would delay treatment necessary to 
the patient's life or endanger the patient's health; or two, the. 
patient is unable to consent and a person authorized to consent is 
not reasonably available. Whenever a physician provides such addi
tional services, he must present the bill for his fee directly to 
the primary physician; who shall accumulate all fees for such addi
tional services and present a single bill to the patient. 

737 
(Commltt~ Minutes) 

8770 ~ 



t 

' 

I 

Minut.::s of the N'evada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on ...... - Commerce ... and ... Labor·····-····-···············-··········-················--····--··-····-·-··· 
Date: •........ A,J?.J:.il .. ..2+···l.9..7.9 . 
Page··········-······· 3 ... ·•·-·················-
( SB 358 - continued) 

Senator Faiss agreed with Senator Ashworth that the initial physi
cian would become the "billing and collecting mechanism" but that. 
this would be necessary because there are cases where physicians 
get together for reasons other than tending the patient and then 
bill him for that time. Senator Faiss referredto.aletter that he 
had received illustrating this problem (see Exhibit C). 

Senator Young commented that the initial physician could tally the 
bills and add 10 percent and the bill would be even higher. 

Senator Ashworth stated that it is necessary, at times, to call in 
other physicians for consultations. 

Senator Faiss agreed, but stated that the situation is often abused. 
He concluded that if SB 386 is not processed, he would at least like 
to see some kind of investigation to help alleviate the problem 
where it exists. 

Rick Pugh, Executive Director,· Nevada State Medical Association, 
stated that he would investigate the situation to which Senator 
Faiss referred and report back to the committee. He stated that 
·the problem is not widespread and that Fred Hillerby, Executive 
Director of the Nevada Hospital Association, would investigate also. 

S Form 63 

SB 386 - Testimony continued. 

Heber Hardy, Chairman, Public Service Commission, stated that he 
agrees with the suggestion to delete line 10 of section 1. He 
also agreed to deleting '.' as determined by the Commission" on line 
10 of section 3, and adding "or addition to an existing facility". 
He suggested that language such as "electric generating units to
gether with their associated facilities" would be clearer. He 
stated that the Commission has not promulgated rules and regulations 
and has used the statute as a guideline. 

Chairman Wilson stated that the language is jurisdictional, but 
that there should be some definition as to what is "minor" and what 
is "major". 

Senator Ashworth concurred. 

Mr. Hardy agreed that the present statute be left as is in this 
section; that if NRS 704.820 and 704.900 were complied with, there 
would be no need for a second hearing. He explained to Senator Mc
corkle that the statute requires the environmental impact studies 
and that it is the applicant's determination as to whether it is 
necessary to apply; but ultimately, it is the Commission's decision. 

Senator Mccorkle stated that he is concerned with "additions to · 
existing utility facilities" and asked Mr. Hardy if he was comfor
table with the language. 

Mr. Hardy replied that the language is confusing and therefore the 
Act should not be amended by this legislation. He stated, however, 

(Committee Minutes) 

8770 ~ 



I 

I 

I 
S Form 63 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legisfatnra 

Senate Committee on ........ Comm.ere e ... and ... Labor········-······································-·······-·-···············-·········-· 
Date: .. ·-····Ap..r.il .... 2.-,.-.l.9..1.9 
Page············-··· 4 ··-···················· · ·····~ 

that the change "when constructed outside an incorporated city", 
and "transmission substations designed to operate at 200 kilovolts", 
would be acceptable because this would be consistent with all util
ity facilities. Mr. Hardy continued that it is assumed that with
in an incorporated facility, there are zoning laws that would pro
tect within an urban area. 

Senator Young expressed concern with limiting to construction out
side an incorporated city that is on the premises. 

Mr. Hardy explained that there is a problem when a telephone company 
builds within the city limits and has to apply for a permit; he 
feels this is unnecessary. He disagreed with Senator Mccorkle that 
it is his interpretation; it is the statute that requires the per
mit. He concluded that it is important to require the permits for 
"major" units. 

Noel Clark, Director, Department of Energy, appearing on his own 
behalf (.as a consumer}, stated that he is opposed to SB 386. He 
explained that legislative language is "in cement" and that speci
fied rule-making to supplement the statute is a more satisfactory 
method, rather than amending the present statute. He continued 
that the Commission should have a deputy attorney general on a full
time basis for rule-making. He added that he does agree on th~ 
point regarding telephone facilities outside of an incorporated 
city. · 

Stan Warren, representing Nevada Bell, stated that he supports 
SB 386 as it relates to Nevada Bell. 

Mr. Hardy clarified that regarding Carson City, the statute provides 
that electric generating units together with their associated fa
cilities, do not have the qualifying language of being "when con
structed outside"; therefore, a generating unit would require a 
permit. 

Senator Close stated that a permit should not be required for 
changing a generator or a small motor and asked for language that 
would differentiate between"major" and "minor". 

Mr • .Soule explained that his new language "electric generation 
units together with their associated facilities" takes care of 90 
percent of the additions to generating units. 

Senator Close stated that Clark County has equally stringent re
quirements as the city, so that application permits would be costly 
and unnecessary. 

Mr. Hardy explained to Senator Mccorkle that a gas company applica
tion had been recently received by the Commission to build a liqui
fied natural gas facility, and the location posed a problem; an al
ternative was to build a looping transmission line alongside the 
existing line to provide storage. He continued that if this were 

{Committee !'IJJnutes) ?39 
8770 ~ 



I 

' 

I 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on.·--·-·Cornrner Ce·-· and ... Labor······----··················-············-··-··-----·----------·----·---···--···-
Date: ___ . __ .. .:AP-.:t'.il __ .2.-f--·l·~t7.9 
Page· ···--·-----··---.S.·······---··-·-·-----~ 

taken out of the Environmental Protection Act, the Commission would 
not have a chance to determine whether there is need. 

Senator Mccorkle replied that if that's the case, possibly the law 
should be changed and that the need for justification should be in
dependent of the EPA. He stated that two underground lines should 
be allowed to be built next to each other; because if the first was 
approved, the second should be automatic. 

Chairman Wilson closed the public hearing on Senate Bill 386. 

SB 387 Relating to public utilities regulation; changing 
certain procedures required for an increase in rates 
and for the use of deferred accouqting. 

William c. Branch, Treasurer, Sierra Pacific Power Company, testi
fied in support of $B 387 and submitted prepared testimony (see 
Exhibit D). 

Chairman Wilson referred to lines 38 through 40, page 2. Mr. Branch 
explained that this language would allow recovery of a debit balance 
for increased costs even if the utility's rate of return was in ex
cess of the last allowed rate of return.-

Mr; Branch explained to Senator Blakemore that the Tracy plant, 
which is a $10 million plant, came out at about 4.4 percent of 
recovery; but that it would cost more to scrap it than to just re
tire it. He continued that the figures shown are only about 80 per
cent of the plant, which would be the Nevada jurisdictional amount; 
the actual cost of the plant was $28 million. 

Senator Mccorkle asked why 100 percent of the value could not be. 
recovered •. 

Mr. Branch explained that 100 percent is unrecoverable because of 
the lag. If a plant is retired at the end of 35 years, it would no 
longer be on the books, and would no longer be a valid expense. He 
stated that what Sierra Pacific is trying to do is match expenses 
with recovery of expenses. Depending on when the ·application for 
rate increase is made, there could be a 24-month lag in recovering 
all of the expenses; that would cause a financial "crunch" because 
expenses would be recorded on the books and the costs not recovered 
through rates. He stated that the present law provides that the in
vestment is allowed up to six months after the end of the test per
iod. At the Tracy plant investment was allowed, but the associated 
depreciation was not. 

Mr. Branch explained to Senator Mccorkle that there could be some 
lag, depending on when the plant went into service; if the timing 
was bad, the lag could be six months. 

Senator Ashworth commented that it should be recovered when the 
expense occurred so it could be prorated to recover the cost im
mediately. 

(Committee Minutes) 

S Form 63 mo~ 



I 

I 

I 
S Form 63 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee O!l.. ••..•• co~1~rce ... and ... Labor···················································-····-······························· 
Date: ........ 1:.P..r.i.l ... .2.t·-·l.9_1.9 
Page· ............... 6 ... ••·-······················· 

Senator Close suggested that the language on 38 through 41 of 
page· 2 and lines 13 through 18; page 3 be left with the original 
language. 

Mr. Branch explained to Senator Hernstadt that Nevada's test 
period is predicated upon a recorded period of 12 months and the 
expenses have to be experienced. In California the estimated test 
period is allowed. He stated that he does not know how many states 
are not allowed the full 100% recovery. He continued that when a 
piece of equipment that is supposed to last for 20 years only lasts 
15 years, it is retired early; there is no depreciation. 

Senator Close stated that if equipment lasts beyond the 35 years, 
the company would apply to the Commission for 4.4 percent depre
ciation. He stated that nothing would be lost; but the question 
would be if the depreciation were taken at the first or later on. 

Mr. Branch explained to Senator Ashworth that if equipment were 
usable beyond its depreciation·period and the cost had already 
been recovered there would be no rate base in effect. The plant 
could still be used but would not be able to be earned upon. 

Heber Hardy, Chairman, Public Service Commission, introduced again 
Janet MacDonald Commissioner, PSC. Ms. MacDonald explained that the 
PSC does not allow unit changes to depreciation. She stated that 
if the revenues were to go in the last month of ·the test period, a 
loss of revenue would be generated for that company; but the PSC 
makes no adjustment for setting rates for future revenues. 

Ms. MacDonald explained that presently the utility would be allowed 
one month's depreciation rather than 12 months; but that there 
would be no changes to the revenue during _the test period. She 
continued that Valrny will create substantial additional revenue to 
the company and, if adjustments are not made to depreciation, the 
ratepayers would be paying for the depreciation for the full 12 
months rather than one. She continued that in setting rates, the 
PSC is trying to leave revenue alone and follow the historical per
iod of what actually took place. 

Ms.-MacDonald agreed with Senator Mccorkle that I/12th depreciation 
seems reasonable; but disagreed that depreciation should be used 
during construction, because the plant shoud be used and useful. 

Mr. Hardy explained that the PSC is not allowing Sierra Pacific 
Power to annualize for one month for a future 12-month period but 
that this bill would allow annualization. 

Senator Mccorkle asked the rationale for asking for more deprecia
tion. 

Mr. Branch explained that the problem is if the depreciation that 
is currently allowed occurs in the actual period, and the construc
tion goes beyond the month, by the time the rates are made effec
tive, it's possible to have been in operation up to 12 months. 

(Committee Minutes) 

mo~ 



I 

I 

Minutes oi the Nevada State Legislature 
. Commerce and Labor 

Senate Comnuttee on. ....... ·-······-·········································-············-···················--··-·············-···-···-·--····-·······-········· 
Date: ........ .AP..t".i.l ... .2.t·-·l.9..7.9 
Page·.··············-·.7 ·············-·······-·-

Mr. Branch explained that as far as the new plant is concerned 
the PSC would allow a change in the rate of depreciation but, be
cause of the investment, additional depreciation would not be al
lowed. 

Ms. MacDonald explained that if a key employee were added in the 
last month, his salary would be allowed for only that month. 

Chairman Wilson expressed confusion and asked if the Sierra Pacific 
Power Company is trying to annualize the 12th month of a 12-month 
period. He asked if they are talking about some device to capture 
the period during the lag between the end of the 12-month period, 
coupled with the adjustments for the subsequent six months and the 
decision date. 

Mr. McKibben explained that Sierra Pacific is a big company. The 
large amount of money being discussed has a tremendous impact on 
the industry; so that a general rate case is timed so that the rates 
go into effect as close to the· completion of the generating addition 
as possible. He continued that the magnitude of depreciatiion at 
Tracy No. 3 was one of the worst dips ever experienced in earnings 
and with Valmy the dip could be worse. 

In answer to Senator Hernstadt, Ms. MacDonald explained ·that the 
shareholders are made whole many years down the line. 

Senator Hernstadt asked how security analysts consider the PSC with 
regard to being consumer-oriented. Ms. MacDonald replied that the 
PSC is considered neutral. 

Chairman Wilson stated that SB 387 is an important piece of legis
lation and the PSC should have a position; he, therefore, asked Ms. 
MacDonald to report back to the committee. 

Ms. MacDonald stated that she is concerned with the difference between 
the authorized rate of return that the PSC gives utilities and what 
they actually earn; there is a gap and she does not know if it is 
the PSC's policies of the company's mismanagement. 

Mr. Hardy explained that the real issue is a break in the historical 
test period approach. The utility wants the PSC to use the future 
test period for this particular expense and if this is done the PSC 
will have to be using a future test period for revenue. 

Senator Close stated that annualizing seems to be the problem. 

Mr. Hardy answered that the depreciation starts the day the plant 
goes into service# but now they do not annualize. 

Mr. McKibben explained that the prior actual test period is used to 
build rates for-the future, and future rates can only be based on 
one month. 

Chairman Wilson called for a recess at 3:30 p.m. 

74Z 
(Committee l\Dnotes) 

S Form 63 8770 ~ 



I 

I 

I 
S Form 63 

MinuteS of the Nevada State Legislature 
. Commerce and Labor Senate Committee on .............................. ······························-···························-······························-····-·····--·-···-···-···· 

Date:. _____ AQ.r.il .... 2._,.._l.9..7.9 
Page· ·············--8······-··-······-··········-

The meeting reconvened at 3:45 p.m. 

Janet MacDonald, PSC Commissioner, stated that the PSC's position 
is against SB 387 and that there should be hearings where the util
ity can fully argue for depreciation and the Commission decides. 
She stated that the Commission has the authority to promulgate by 
order. 

Mr. Hardy stated that the PSC recognizes the utility's position 
but as written, this legislation would be adverse to the rate
payers. 

Chairman Wilson clarified that SB 387 covers two areas; one is 
annualizing the effect of 12-month depreciation taken in the last 
month of the test year and annualized over the entire test year; 
and the other question is the regulatory lag that occurs between 
the end of the test period and the effective date of any order re
sulting from the·case itself. 

Mr. Hardy explained that when the plant went into service and was 
used and useful, the actual depreciation expense is what was al
lowed for operating expenses; •the bill could include the last month 
in the next 12 months~ He added that the PSC recognizes the lag, 
but uses what is called yearly rate base as opposed to average rate 
base. 

Chairman Wilson asked if the rate base is the same effect as annual
izing. 

Mr. Hardy answered that it is not the same effect but it has a 
tendency to allow the greater rates. He continued that what should 
be done is at least to come forward to this end of the certification 
period and, in effect, use this 12-month period of expense and treat 
it as though it occurred this 12-month period. 

Mr; Hardy explained to Chairman Wilson that the certification period, 
which was authorized by the legislature four years ago, means that 
the PSC may take into consideration a new investment during a period 
of six months beyond the end of the test period. But the unit cost 
does not change and, if the depreciation·rate is increased in the 
last month, the PSC allows that rate to be applied against all of 
the rate base; so this is, in effect, annualizing rate but not units. 
He continued that with revenues, the 12th month is not included. In 
the succeeding six months,all within the test period, the revenues 
are not increased. 

Mr. Branch commented that whether the period is 4 or 5 months, the 
law provides that the PSC get at least 90 days to make a decision 
beyond this certified period. Nine months after the test period; 
if there's one month's depreciation allowed, Sierra Pacific would 
have accrued 10 months by the time the rates went into effect. 

Mr. Hardy explained to Senator Ashworth that rates are determined 
based on what is called a test period (which is a fiscal year) and 
based on the operating expenses and revenues for that period. 

(Committee Minutes) 



I 

I 

' 

Minutes of the Neva<la State Legislature 
, . Comr.terce and Labor Seu,,,e Committee on ........................................................... ·-······························-··········-···················-·-·············-··-·-··· 

Date: ... _ •... A~ . .r.il .... 2.t·-·l.9..7.9 
Page· ................ .9 ............... ·-··········-

Chairman Wilson stated that the present system is not satisfactory, 
and suggested that in a case where it's warranted, a test period 
could be set beyond the first 12-month period • 

. Mr. Hardy suggested a possible.solution would be to allow a partic
ular item an actual depreciation expense up to and including the 
last certification period. 

Senator Ashworth commented that the problem is that the situation 
poses 1 project, but there are other projects already in process 
before the 12-month period is completed. He suggested that the 
utility could delay a month and get the whole 12 months' credit. 

Ms. MacDonald stated that the rate payer will be giving a rate of 
return. Rates are set on clearing operating expenses, but the 
utility is entitled to a rate of return for plant used and useful 
in service. She explained that the rate payer will give l/12th de
preciation, but the utility 10 percent on the full $35 million plant, 
even if it was not at full capacity. 

Senator Hernstadt stated that the PSC is in a bad position because 
the rate payers dislike rate increases and the utilities think they 
will not be abl_e to raise rates because of lack of rate of return. 
He continued that the real issue is getting quicker relief once the 
plant is in service; 

Mr. Hardy stated that, as in the hearing regarding construction work 
in progress, there was a departnre from previous policy and this 
problem could be solved the same way. 

Chairman Wilson closed the public hearing on Senate Bill 387. 

SB 388 Allows department commissioner to conduct public 
hearings upon direction of public service commission. 

Heber Hardy, Chairman, PSC, stated that the PSC is recommending a 
salary of $30,000 for a deputy commissioner with broad knowledge 
of public utility regulations, its philosophy, its policies and 
current status of major regulatory issues. He explained that the 
PSC is now being faced with a new natiopal energy policy act and 
public utility regulatory policy act and will be required to con
sider 11 major standards; the standards are not mandated but the 
PSC is required to consider them. He continued that this deputy 
would make recommendations, coordinate staff efforts, conduct 
hearings upon occasion, and take care of rule-making under the 
Commissioner's supervision. He stated that the deputy commissioner 
would not have decision-making responsibilities, however, but would 
conduct minor certificate and transportation hearings. 

Senator Young stated that there has never been more of time than 
now that the PSC has needed more qualified help. 

Mr. Hardy agreed and explained that the Commission is asking for 
the upgrading of certain positions but this is the only one 

(Commlttee l.1-tlnates) 

S Form 63 8770 ~ 



' 

' 

Mir:t:tes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on ........ co~~E.<;.~ ... ~.D-.9: ... ±:'.?.-.9.9..F. ......... -·······································-·········-······-·······-···-····· 
Date: ........ .Av.r.i.l .... 2.,..-.1.9..7.9 
Page· ·············-·.l.0. .... .-.................... _ 

requiring legislation •. He continued that deputy attorney gene
rals don't have time for rule-making; this position would be a 
tremendous improvement. He stated that the PSC would be proposing 
a rather detailed study of the PSC with possible recommendations for 
restructuring. 

SB 377 Repeals minimum wage law. 

Senator Hernstadt, the•introducer, along with Senator Mccorkle, 
presented an article regarding the minimum wage for the record. 
(See Exhibit F.) 

Senator Hernstadt handed each committee member a copy of the ar
ticle also,as well as a copy of a g~aph published in the Wall Street 
Journal last February. The graph, showing the effect of unemploy
ment,(particularly on black teen-agers) reached as high as forty 
percent in 1976. Senator Hernstadt stated the federal minimum 
wage is now $2.90, and could possibly be raised to $3.35 very soon. 
The state minimum wage is $2.75. He said that Nevada has regained 
jurisdiction over this area; the former labor Commissioner had in
creased the minimum wage to $2.75 for adults and 2.38 for youth. 

A research study Senator Hernstadt conducted two years ago, for 
previous testimony, indicated that about forty percent of the labor 
force was affected by that. Since the federal government only has 
jurisdiction over companies having sales greater ·than $250,000 a 
year, Senator Hernstadt feels his bill would benefit Nevada com
panies which the State has jurisdiction over (those making $250,000 
or less per year.) 

Senator Hernstadt discussed the categories of people aff~cted·by 
-his bill: youth, particularly blacks and other minorities; handi
capped persons; senior citizens, and people with language barriers. 
He said the minimum wage prevents the training of these people, be
cause they cannot earn enough for the employer to warrant him paying 
them the minimum wage. 

Senator Hernstadt pointed out that the minimum wage creates an en
tire class of unemployed people who can't produce enough to warrant 
their wage. He feels that effects of the minimum wage are responsible 
for the CETA program which employs most of those employed in the four 
categories listed above. Senator Ue~~~~~~tquoted Milton Friedman, 
another well-known economist,who has said the basic problem of black 
unemployment is their lack of a good education. Without the minimum 
wage law, people with lesser education could work for lower wages, 
creating an incentive for employers to hire and train them. 

In reply to the comment that the youth will never be moved up the 
pay scale, Senator Herns-tadt said that if they were competent workers, 
other employers would pay them what they were worth on the open job 
market. He concluded that if removing the wage control was effec
tive at a time when unemployment is low in Nevada, it would be effec
tive at any time. 

Senator Young asked if there was any evidence that Mr. Friedman's 

(Committee Minutes) ?-'15 
S Form 63 8770 "'9-



I 

I 

' 
5 Form 63 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on ..... _.Co~erce ... and ... Labor·······-·····-··················································-·········--··-··· 
Date:. ........ AP..r.i..l .... 2.f····l.9..7.9 · 
Page· ·········-······ll ..................... _ ... _ 

theory would increase unemployment for blacks and other minorities. 
Senator Hernstadt replied that he didn't have a study, but he did 
not believe that a well-known economist would make a theory without 
a means of justifying it. 

Senator Young commented that many economists disagree on problems 
of this kind. 

Senator Hernstadt said he would like to include in his testimony 
that there are three minimum wages and many people aren't aware 
of this fact. He also stated that the federal government used to 
have jurisdiction over companies making $500,000 or more, but it 
was reduced to those making $250,000 or more. 

Senator Young asked if there were instances of minorities being 
employed before the jurisdiction was lowered to $250,000. 

Senator Hernstadt replied that. he didn't have figures on what that 
change did. 

-Senator Young said that he realized that not everyone came under 
the minimum. 

Senator Hernstadt stated that everyone in the state is under the 
minimum wage law whether under federal or State jurisdiction. 

Senator Blakemore remarked that it appeared that minimum wage was 
affecting all teenagers, not just blacks. 

Senator Hernstadt replied that.he didn't want a racist distinction 
between black and white teenagers in the statute. 

Senator Young inquired if it would be possible to certify the unem
ployed and allow them to work for less than the minimum wage. Sena
tor Hernstadt said he didn't know if it would be possible. 

Senator Young said this would include the law of economic supply 
and demand; he wondered if they could change the state law to al
low for this. 

Senator Hernstadt commented that anything was possible at the Sta~e 
level through legislation. He also said that he would rather see 
the law of supply and demand work in the labor market, than certify 
unemployed people. 

Senator Mccorkle stated that minimum wages and price controls were 
much the same, although opposite. He said price controls create 
shortages; and the minimum wage creates a surplus of skilled labor. 
He said the minimum wage is designed to cure the symptoms and not 
the cause. He continued that the symptom is that people are not 
able to earn a living wage; the problem is that they don't have a 
saleable skill. That is why blacks and teenagers are unemployed-
they don't have a saleable skill. 

(Committee l\Unutes) 



I 

I 

' 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on. .... - ..... Commerce ... and .. Lal>OJ:. ···-·····························-······-·······--~--··-······-··· 
Date:_ ..... _hP-~ i 1 2 , 19 7 9 
Page·.·······-···-·-1.2 ... ______________ _ 

Senator Mccorkle continued that a minimum wage creates a s~rplus 
of people who cannot sell their skills at the minimum wage. He 
stated that the value of this skill is determined by the market 
and not the government; a minimum wage has no effect on skill. 
He concluded that minimum wages tries to deal with the symptoms 
of the problem but the cause of the problem is that people's skills 
are not worth the minimum regardless of what the minimum is; the 
minimum wage is an artificial imposition of government which creates 
surpluses and shortages. 

Richard McNeel, State Labor Commissioner, stated that he is op
posed to SB 377. He said that this legislation would allow tips 
to be used in computation of minimum wage, which is totally wrong. 
He continued that the bill would repeal jurisdiction of the Nevada 
Labor Commission to care for Nevadans; the state could not monitor 
nor audit to ensure that Nevadans are receiving the minimum wage. 

Senator Close stated that there are few people working for the 
minimum wage. 

Mr. McNeel explained that people who work in car washes, waitresses, 
and others who get tips, do work for minimum. He continued that 
the Commission has 2 compliance investigators doing work provided 
for under the Minimum Wage Law which can only be enforced up to 
$2.75 per hour, anything over that is under the jurisdiction of 
the federal government. He continued that this bill would not 
eliminate any staff because of overtime (over 40 hours·a week and 
over 8 hours a day) which his staff audits from time to time; this 
past week $8,400 had been collected by a car wash that will be paid 
back to employees. 

Chairman Wilson observed that if this bill were precisely concur
rent with the federal law, there would be no need for minimum wage. 

Mr •. McNeel answered that federal law does not cover overtime past 
8 hours in one day; therefore, with the nature of industry in Ne
vada, people could work many hours in one day and be paid overtime 
so the Nevada law is better than the federal law. 

Senator Young stated that more youths would be employed if paid $2 
per hour. In answer to that, Mr. McNeel stated that when the agency 
went to a youth wage, it didn't make that much difference because 
for just a small amount more, an adult could be hired. 

Senator Young suggested that young people be certified in order 
that they could be paid whatever they command. He stated that 
candidates from all minorities could be certified; this could be 
tested out to see if it would work. 

Mr. McNeel answered Senator Close that most youths employed by 
fast food chains are paid the adult minimum, which is 15 percent 
more than the youth wage. Senator Close stated that in previous 
legislation the 15 percent differential had been introduced and 

(Committee Mlmdes) 

S Form 63 



I 

I 

t 
S Form 63 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 
. Commerce and Labor Senate Comnuttee on·-····························-···························-···············-···········-······················-····· ............... ·-·-········-.. 

Date: ........ .AP,.r.i.l .... 2.-r.--·l.9..7.9 
Page· ·····-········-13. .... _ ............... __ 

and since it was nearly the adult wage employers were not inclined 
to. hire youths. Mr. McNeel agreed to re.pen back to Senator Young 
regarding statistics about the results of the 15 percent reduction. 
He explained that most youths are now paid at the adult level. 

Claude Evans, Executive Secretary-Treasurer, AFL-CIO, testified in. 
opposition to SB 377. He stated there are many more people collect
ing unemployment than previous indicated, such as cooks, porters, 
laborers, bus boys and bus girls; and if SB 377 were to pass it would 
be a sign of regression. Mr. Evans stated that, according to the 
federal government, $18 per day which is the minimum wage, is poverty; 
and if it were lowered the attitude of the people would be. to go on 
welfare. Mr. Evans continued that if unions only cared about union 
people, this would be a good selling point. 

Senator Hernstadt stated that the reason the national unions try to 
keep increasing the minimum wage is that.if they get another' 30¢ 
tacked on the minimum wage, th~y can go back to the bargaining table 
and get an additional 50¢ or a dollar on the next contract. 

Mr. Evans' answertosenator McCorklets question was that this bill 
would allow a.youth to take a job from an adult who has to earn a 
living. He stated that dishwashers are pretty much the same, and 
that the quantity of dishes washed by a dishwasher should be con
sidered with the quality. He concluded that dependability should 
be considered also. 

Chairman Wilson closed the public hearing on Senate Bill 377. 

SJR 17 Requests U.S. Secretary of Defense and Secretary of 
the Army to maintain staffing of civil service employees 
at Hawthorne Army Ammunition Plant~ 

Senator Blakemore explained that the Army has proposed to go to a 
contract arrangement rather than retain the civil service concept. 
He stated that the people living in the area are civil service people 
who own homes there and would be displaced; some have 18 years in 
service and are highly specialized and would have to take employ
ment out of the service and lose retirement benefits. He continued 
that Senator Cannon is trying to do the same thing in Washington, 
D.c.,· and Hawthorne and a special BOard of County Commissioners sup
ports the legislation. 

Senator Hernstadt asked how this legislation would reconcile with 
the SJR that would make a balanced budget. 

Senator Blakemore explained that it would cost more to operate under 
contract, because civil service people would transfer and equally 
skilled people would have to be imported.· 

In response to Senator Hernstadt's question, Senator Blakemore 
answered that people around the waterfront would not want an ammu
nition dump, whereas the remoteness of Hawthorne is ideal. He 

?48 
(Committee 1\-Hnutes) 

8770 ~ 



I 

' 

t 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 
s~nate Committee on ........ cornmerce ... and ... Labor ......................................................... ---······-···-·-
Date:._ ...... .AP..r.il .... 2.t.-·l.9..7.9 
Page· ............... 14 ····--··············--

COn tin ued that the depot at Hawthorne was once billed as the largest 
ammunition depot in the free world in the way of acreage, and has 
supplied the Pacific Fleet all naval ammunition. He stated that the 
$15 million demolition plant that Senator Bible worked so hard for 
would be negated. 

Senator Blakemore explained to Chairman Wilson that leaving things 
as they are would be very cost effective. 

Chairman Wilson closed the publid hearing on Senate Joint Resolution 
17. 

SB 231 Regulates practices of audiology and speech pathology. 

For previous testimony on this bill, see minutes of February 21, 
February 28, and March 7, 1979. 

Chairman Wilson explained that there is a question with the language 
of the bill with regard to the·education requirements. Dr. Shipley 
has stated that a BA degree would require 38 hours of speech pathol
ogy and audiology, plus 125 clock hours in practice; this is a na
tional standard. 

Senator Close stated that before this amendment is accepted, the 
equivalent for a BA should be determined; that Frank Daykin should 
be asked upon what he has.based the 20 hours. He agreed to talk to 
Mr. Daykin and report back to the· Committee. 

Further action on SB 231 was continued to a later date. 

SJR 17 

SB 385 

Requests U.S. Secretary of Defense and Secretary 
of the Army to maintain staffing of civil service 
employees at Hawthorne Army Ammunition Plant. 

Senator Young moved that SJR 17 be passed 
out of Committee with a "Do Pass recommendation. 

Seconded by Senator Ashworth. 

Senator McCorkle abstained. 

Motion carried. 

Allows new application by public utility for change 
of rate that is part of pending application and 
abolished requirement of posting new or amended 
schedules at its stations. 

Senator Young suggested that the PSC has the regulatory authority 
now to solve the problem. 

Senator Close agreed, but stated that the regulations must comply 
with the statutes. 

749 
(Committee Minutes) 

S Form 63 



I 

t 

I 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 
Senate Committee on. ... ·-··········CGmme.~-e.e ... ,a-nd ... ,t,a:t)o:i:: ......................... - ............ ____ ............ _ .. . 
Date:·--··-··A:pJ:il. . .2 , 19 7. 9 
Page: .... ·-·-··--···l.4.. ___ _ 

Chairman Wilson referred to the suggested amendments as follows: 
Page 1, line 20, "A public utility may set forth justification 
for rate increase items of expense or rate base which are the sub
ject of pending litigation or which have been considered to disal
low .•. "; page 2, line 1, "only if those items are clearly and 
separately identified in the applications and supporting schedules." 
He continued that the Commission recommended retaining paragraph 
3, which the bill would strike, paragraph 5, which the bill would 
strike. Chairman Wilson suggested that page 2, paragraph 5 could 
be amended to state "within 30 days after discovery of noncompliance". 

It was agreed that the burden of justification would be with the 
power company. 

Chairman Wilson explained that the burden is with the power company 
but, as Commissioner MacDonald stated, the information is sometimes 
hidden. 

Senator Close suggested language that read "only if those items 
are clearly and separately identified as such and the supporting 
schedules" be added. 

Discussion followed regarding filing and disclosure. The point was 
made that it is possible that the PSC could go six months and then 
come up with dismissal on some type of technicality; but that if a 
decision is made by the PSC, and an unallowable expense has been 
hidden by the utility, that would be flagrant disregard of the rules. 
It was decided-that the PSC should promulgate rules and regulations 
so that the utility would know exactly ·where it is, and exactly what 
it has to do and how it is to do it with regard to application, and 
the Committee would write a letter requesting this. 

SB 386 

Senator Blakemore moved that SB 385 be 
passed out of Committee with an "Amend 
and Do Pass" recommendation. 

Seconded by Senator Ashworth. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Exempts additions to existing public utility 
for change of rate that is part of pending 
cpplications and abolished requirement of 
posting new or amended schedules at its stations. 

Discussion followed as to whether the bill should be processed. 

Senator Mccorkle explained that line 10 of page 1 should be deleted, 
as suggested by Mr. Hardy, because by keeping it out, the PSC can 
judge need on theaddition of a new line next to one that already 
exists, and need has nothing to do with environmental impact; addi
tions to existing facilities can be included as long as the Commis
sion is protected with language that allows it to judge need. 

Senator Blakemore stated that he feels that lines 22 and 23 of page 
1 should be left in. 

(Collllllfflee Mbmta) 750 
S Form 63 8770 ~ 



t 

I 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on. .... - Commerce ... and ... Labor ···················································-·-----··············· 
Date: .. ·-····~.P.£!.± __ ?..l 19 7 9 
Page· ·········-··-15 ·-···-····-····-···-

(SB 386 - bill action continued) 

S Form 63 

Senator Close moved that SB 386 be amended 
by deleting all of the bill except lines 14 
through 17 of page 1. 

Seconded by Senator Young. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Further discussion followed as to whether to include language on 
line 10, page 2, and lines 21, 22 and 23 on page 1. The decision 
was to exclude them. 

SB 387 

Senator Blakemore moved that SB 386 be 
passed out of Committee with an "Amend 
and Do Pass" recommendation. 

Seconded by Senator Young. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Changes certain procedures required of public 
utilities for increased rates and use of deferred 
accounting. 

Action on SB 387 was deferred to a later date. 

SB 388 

SB 358 

Allows deputy commissioner to conduct public 
hearings upon direction of public service 
commission of Nevada. 

Senator Young moved that SB 388 be passed 
out of Committee with a "Do Pass" and be 
re-referred to Senate Finance Committee. 

Seconded by Senator Blakemore. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Relates to medical care; requiring consent of 
hospital patient before a consulting or addi
tional physician is engaged by his primary 
physician. 

Action on Senate Bill 358 was deferred to a later date. 

SB 377 Repeals minimum wage law. 

Action on Senate Bill 377 was deferred to a later date. 

BDR 23-1411 Jio Removes limit on salaries of auditors and 
engineers in public service commission 

(Commfflee Mhmtes) 



I 

Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature 

Senate Committee on. ... ~ ....... G.QrnID.~.t:.Q.e .... 9:Il.Q. .... Ii!ilDQ~ .... _ ..... _ ................................ -----················ 
Date:-·-····A.P..t:il .... 2..,-1..~7.9 
Page· ········-······-···.l6._ .... _ ...... --.-

(BDR 23-1411 - action continued) 

BDR 18-2013 

Senator Blakemore moved for Committee introduction. 

Seconded by Senator Ashworth. 

Motion carried. 
,t: 

Relates to compulsory attendance of witnesses 
before agencies of the state executive department; 
establishing a uniform procedure for the issuance 
and enforcement of subpenas. 

Senator Young moved for Committee introduction. 

Seconded by Senator Ashworth. 

Motion carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Betty Kalicki, Secretary 

APPROVED: 

Thomas R.C. Wilson, Chairman 

(Committee Mlmda) ?5Z 
S Form 63 8770 ~ 



I 

t 

I 

Exhibit A 

Sierra Pacific Po'INer Company [!.'ii] 

TE~IMONY OF H. JOE McKIBBEN, VICE PRESIDENr 
FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING, SIERRA PACIFIC POWER COMPANY 

IN SUPPORT OF S. B. 385 

Paragraph 3 of Section 1 of NRS 704.100 contains a permanency that, 
when strictly interpreted, could result in a utility being prohibited from 
earning on plant which is being used to serve its customers. The following is 
an example. 

In 1973, the Nevada Public Service Commission eliminated Sierra's 
liquid propane gas plant facilities in Reno from Sierra's earnings base because 
the need for these facilities had been replaced by natural gas serving the area. 
This decision was litigated, and the Commission was upheld. It now appears that 
these facilities will have to be reactivated to serve our gas customers. This 
statute prohibits Sierra from introducing new evidence and including the plant 
in our rate base. 

As this statute exists today, there is no opportunity for the utility 
to offer new evidence on any expense or rate base items which are in litigation 
or have been previously disallowed by the Commission or the Courts. 

An extreme example of this present statute's effect on utilities comes 
about if the Commission were to deny a rate request in its entirety. The utility 
could not risk taking the decision to court where final court action may take 
some two years or more, and during this period the utility could not re-file 
with the Nevada Public Service Commission a rate case which includes any of the 
items involved with the pending litigation. Should this example become a reality 1 

the utility could be placed in a position of severe financial deterioration 
which is costly to the utility and its customers. 

Under this proposed legislation, Sierra would file future rate cases 
by handling any items, which had been previously disallowed by the Commission 
or the Courts, as special items so the Commission would clearly recognize them 
as such. Testimony would be provided to justify why we felt the items should 
be included, and then it would be up to the Commission to allow or disallow the 
Company's request. 

I strongly urge you to pass S. B. 385. 

753 



I 

Exhibit B 

,. Sierra Pacific Povver Company [!13.i] 

TESTIMONY OF GARY M. SOULE', SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT 
SIERRA PACIFIC POWER COMPANY 

IN SUPPORT OF S.B. 386 

This Bill, as you know, provides certain modifications 
to NRS 704.840, 860 and 865 which are a part of the Utility Environ
mental Protection Act, NRS 704.820 to 704.900 inclusive. The pur
pose of these modifications is essentially to help reduce costs, 
time and the a&~inistrative burden upon the Public Service Commiss
ion, other state agencies and the utility companies of reviewing 
relatively minor utility additions. The ultimate cost of which is 
paid by the tax payers and the utility customers. 

NRS 704.825, "Declaration of Legislative Findings and 
Purpose," recognizes in Paragraph la that construction of~ 
facilities will be required and that they cannot be built without 
effecting the physical environment where such facilities are locatec. 
Paragraph lb also refers to the protection of the environment rela
tive to the construction of new facilities. ?aragraph le outlines 
the need to review the location of such facilities. 

We agree with the need for environmental review of new 
facilities and their location. However, the existing law has been 

. interpreted to also require a complete review process for additions 
to existing utility facilities as well. The proposed modification 
to 704.840 would clarify that additions to existing facilities, that 
is facilities already constructed, would not require permitting 
under this act. We would, however, recommend that Line 10 -be re
worded from "additionsto existing plants" to "additions to existing 
utility facilities" thus using a term defined within the Act. 

Again referring to NRS 704.825, "Declaration of Legisla
tive Findings and Purpose," Paragraph ld refers to the need to have 
adequate opportunity for all interested parties to participate in 
a review of the location and construction of major facilities. We 
believe this recognizes that efforts and costs should be concen
trated on a review of major facilities at new iocations and not 
necessarily on minor additions to existing operating utility plant. 

The proposed modifications to NRS 704.860 would help 
reduce the need for costly and time consuming reviews and per
mitting processes for minor utility additions. The proposed change 
on Line 13 will insure review of all generating units whether they 
are associated with new plants or are additions to existing plants. 
There are many environmental aspects associated with generating 
units and we concur that unit additions to existing plants should 
also require review and permitting. We believe this modification 
on Line 13 will insure that all electric generating units, whether 
they are additions to existing plants or not, will require permittin~ 
under the procedures of the utility environmental protection act. 

?54 



I 

' 

I 
., 

Sierra Paci-Fae Power Co.-npany ij.'ii) B 

The proposed changes on Lines 14, 15 and 16 will insure 
the review of significant facilities which an electric utility will 
construct and remove the necessity to review the more minor types 
of additions. The proposed changes to NRS 704.865 included on 
Lines 17, 18 and 19 will help to eliminate the need for multiple 
permit hearings on the same facility addition as long as all require
ments of the utility environmental protection act are complied with 
in a proceeding. 

Thank you for the opportunity to present our views. We 
believe the proposed legislation will help to reduce the cost and 
time of reviewing the more minor utility additions and allow money 
and efforts to be concentrated on the more significant proposed 
utility facilities. 

Thank you. 



!' 
1<,. \ ·j..J.-, . I • 

. ......._,,. _ .. .,: .. :-..._ _., .. 

,-·· -.. f) I 

-- i.._ _ ·-- · ·-- ---<L ./· ~··:,.,,.... ..... . ... --c:;: , _,,.:.._,., 

Exhibit c 

r 

l/ ·-

,1 
'-,.. ·· 

756 

dmayabb
Original



""' 
· EXHIBIT _C .; 

i; .. , ~· . 

l . . . 

t 
! 
' 

} 

·, 

'! 

757 



i 
} 
i · 

I
f 
L 
! 

i 

' 

,'3 
{

,' I _,,..-) I, I , t_ . . 
- ·· ~l ,(. 'f .. f _• J 1· · 1· ,,, _ - l , - . _ ,. i.... ! ", _ 

EXHIBIT ·- c 

.::lr.<--L-J 

__ ,__/ · 

'1 

758 



• 

t 

• 

Sierra Pacific Po""er Company ijrR] Exhibit D 

TES!IMONY OF WILLIAM C. BRANCH, TREASURER, 
SIERRA PACIFIC POWER COMPANY 

IN SUPPORT OF S. B. 387 

In 1975, the Nevada legislature made changes to NRS 704.110 which 
requires the Public Service Commission in setting rates to consider increased 
investment, certain ex~enses and costs of new securities which are known and 
measurable with reasonable accuracy at the time of filing, and which will 
become effective within six months after the last month of the actual 12-months 
results of operation. The result of that legislation has been a strengthening 
of the financial standing of the major utilities in the State. 

There are, however, two items that we feel require further clarifi
cation so that the intent of the original statute can be preserved. 

(1) 

(2) 

Depreciation expense, or capital recovery, is a major cost 
component in the over-all cost to serve our utility customers. 
Based on current Commission practice, there is a substantial 
lag between the actual recording of such expense and recovery 
from our customers. I have prepared Exhibit I, attached to 
illustrate such lag. 

The bottom line as far as Exhibit I is concerned is as 
follows: 

(a) Recovery of actual depreciation expense for Tracy #3 
experienced in 1975 is not fully reflected in Sierra 
Pacific's electric rates until March 1977, or fifteen 
months after the fact. 

(b) The total investment in Tracy #3 cannot be fully recovered 
over the life of the facility because of the above-mentioned 
lag. In fact, approximately 4.4% of this investment, or 
about $1.0 million will remain unrecovered at the end of 
the estimated service life. 

The impact on Sierra Pacific's future investment recovery 
will even be greater. For example, Valmy #1 and #2 will each 
cost 3~ times the investment in Tracy #3. 

The proposed amendment to NRS 704.110(3) (lines 9 and 10, 
page 2) will alleviate the above-mentioned problem. 

Another 
page 2. 
cost of 
as new 

modification we feel necessary is shown on line 
This change will enable the Company to reflect 

capital reductions or retirements in securities 
securities. 

11, 
in its 
as well 

I urge this Committee to pass proposed S. B. 387 • 



- • 
~;.;-:.rra Pa::::ffic Povu:c'r C~J @:EJ 

RECOVERY OF );£VADA JU!USDICTIONAL DEPRECIATION COSTS 
APi'LICABLE TO TRACY GE:.'ERATING STATIO:l lJl,IIT #3 

4 
5 
6 

1~ 
l! 
12 

1 -.I 

!9 
20 

Ann~al Charge or Recovery - 1975 

c~~ulative@ 12/31/75 

An~~al Charge or Recovery - 1976 

Cc:::obtive •'.il :2/Jl/76 

..;r.:::..:a! cr.aq;e or Recovery - 1977 

Cl.ll:l~lative@ 12/31/77 

Ann~al C~arge or Recovery 1978 

An~·,al Char:;;e:s • Re<:laining Years 

Cu~ulative - End of Service Life 

$ 

(1) 

Depreciation 
Pe:- (..oo:.Cs 

573 OOJ(a) 

573,000 

5 73 00:) 

l,l!.6,000 

573 00:l 

l, 719,000 

573 000 

2,292,000 

19,245,000 

~OGO(d) 

11 'l of Total Investa:ent 100.0% 
22 
2~ 
24 Kot cs: 
~5 C•) ~dvada juris~ictio~al po~tion of annual depreciation char5e ($735,000 x 78%). 
26 (b) Doc·~et :;-,, 574 (rates effective 6/3/76), · 
:.i (c) Docitt :;o. 906 (rates effective 3/14/77). 
2a (c) '.:evada jurisdictional portion of plant balance at 12/31/74 ($27,611,000 x 787..). 

(2) (3) 
Recovery Through Rate Increases 

Made Effective as Follo~s: 
6/3/76(h) 3/14/77(c) 

-0- -0-

-0- -o-

$ 223 000 -0-

:'.23,000 -0-

382,000 ~ 159,000 

605,000 159,GOO 

382 000 191 000 

987,000 350,000 

14 434 000 4 811 000 

1!1.,421,000 ~5.161,000 

-
EXHIBIT I 

(4) 

Li:-:.:. 
Total Rc.:ovc :v ~ 

-0-

" -0- 3 
4 

-0-

$ 2::.,,occ 
3 

541 000 9 
10 

764,000 11 
12 

573,C.OO l3 
1-

1,337,000 L 
~o 

19.2~5 c,Jo 1; 
15 

$20.582,000 19 
2J 

95,6% 11 
00 

2, 
.'.?.'.. 
2 ', 
26 
L7 

20 

~J'----------------------------------------------------------' 
r:r. 
0 



• 
lJockeL rio. 

Exhibit E Schedu 1 e No. ----··of ---·--
Page ___ _ oT·-- ---

.Estimated and Subsequently Experienced Adjustments which 
may be Certified Up to Six Months Beyond the Test Period 
Pursuant to NRS 704.110(3)* 

(1) CAPITAL STRUCTURE The costs of new securities as defined in NRS 704.322 
and the associated interest expense as an adjustment to 
Federal Income Tax calculation. 

(2) RATE BASE Adjustments reflecting increased investm.ents in facilities 
· used and useful in utility operations and the deduction of 

the identical amount of increase from CWIP as a factor in 
allocating interest cost between departments. 

(3) EXPENSES 

• 

(a) FUEL COSTS 
(Including Purchased 
Power) 

KW's of Demand when such are computed on a ratchet 
clause basis. 

Adjustment for changed unit cost factors for power and fuel 
plus resulting sales tax and unit cost charges for freight 
applied to the test period units. 

(b) LABOR COSTS Adjustment for per unit rate change and associated labor 
costs, pensions, benefits and taxes when such taxes are 
a dire~t result of per unit rate change of labor costs . 

(c) RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT When due to a unit rate change. 
COSTS 

(d) PROPERTY TAXES 

(e) DEPRECIATION 

(f) INSURANCE 

( g) POSTAGE 

When due to a unit rate change. 

When due to a unit rate change which has previously been 
approved in writing by the Commission. 

When based on a unit rate change or, if directly associated 
with revenue or labor cost increases as per above. 

When due to a unit rate change. 

* Each adjustment should also include an appropriate Federal Income Tax calculation. 

Note: A unit is the quantitative measurement of an item, or level of u·se, consumption 
or effort. Unit cost is that cost which when multiplied by the number of 

t 

units within a given time period results in the aggregate dollar amount applicable 
to that period. Unit rate is that rate which when multiplied by the number of 
units within a given time period results in the aggregate dollar amount 
applicable to.that period. 

Number of Units x Unit Cost (Rate)= TOTAL COST 

?61 



' 

December 17, 1978--Las Vegas Review-Journal-9K 

Louis 
Rukeyser 

'. J!linimum waee 1' urged that the Janaury 1 
L7 increase from $2.65 to 

c·uts job '!larket l ~-::e:.0 %i~e :~!:as~ 
In some areas of the · asked Carter·s chief eco-

NEW _YORK-Ro~ald economy, more machines nomic adviser, Charles 
W 9:1tens~1el ~ a dried- will be sold. in others, eco-. ! Schultze, why the Presi- · 
'-·'·t business m the beau ! dent had not included that ,.nu • nomic contraction . will 
tiful country north of San simply replace economic I proposal in his "anti-infla-
Francisco.. He is ~ kind growth. And all in the tion" program, I got a tor-
°;lan, and m the social fab- name of being liberal, tured response that trans-
nc a useful one-beca_u.se progressive and humane- lated into one reality-
each ~mmer, . he hires or so we think. George Meany wanted the 
many high-school and col- Wha will ha J increase. 
lege kids to work in the t . p~entillanu- Meany\, minions, ; it 
cutting and drying of fruit. ary 1• ?f cow:se, IS 

8 an-. should be pointed ·out, 
Given the nation's per- 0ther md th~ totally_ counf-· work for very much more 

nnial bl f t . terpro uct1ve series o ,1 than the mm· ·un· um wag·e, e pro . em o een- . · th · • ·: 
d l t . this mcreases m e nation s . so the AFL-CIO's interest age -unemp oymen , . . t N t · 

is a contribution of consid- -~;m-wage ra_ e. 0 
, in this subject is plainly 

erable economic value. 0 Y O we ~on?,Due t~ less humanitarian than he 
But Waltenspiel is trou- defy the obJ~cttvt ev~- vehemently maintair.s. In-

bled right now, not about dence that tru:s po cy 15 deed, the reality is that t:he 
fi b t bo t 1 ns-l monstrously tnhumane, chief function of the mini-

gs u. a thu Iaemo E · e- but we refuse even to pro-
mons m e w. very 'd 

1 
mum-wage laws is to as--

time Congress · raises the V1 e a separate, ower :1lte sure the perpetuation- :Of 
minimum wage rate, he re- for young ~ple aruoous _ labor shortages in many 
ports, it becomes a little to put ~eirf hfoolat dodo the, areas-at the expense . of 
more difficult for him to fithrst Amstf:P .0 tdre · er to those- human beings who 
provide those jobs. "Each e encan eam. could fill these shortages( 
times wages go up," he It is commonplace to de- We get away with le~-
told me, "it becomes more nounce economists these lative abominations like 
economical to buy a ma- · days, and not wholly with- this in the U.S. because 
chine to replace some of out reason, but here is one the average person is not 
the people." case where their legendary fully apprised . of what's 

Waltenspiel's dilem- inability to agree among going on. We still hear the 
ma-which he must either persuasion in other mat- silly suggestion that those 
solve or go out of busi- . .ters, now agrees that the who oppose minimuzp-
ness-is worth remember- minimum-wage laws are wage legislation are in fa. 
ing as we draw closer to classic cases of a theoreti- vor of starvation wages--
January 1, 1979, when our cal good producing a high- an obvious confusion be-
national legislators in ly practical eviL Indeed, tween the minimum-wage 
their · wisdom will once . two of President Carter's . rate set by Congress SJ?.d 
again put many- young - top economic appointees, the actual wage received. 
people out of work ·and Treasury Secretary Mi- . For if the rate is set artifi-
keep many more from ever · chael Blumenthal and cially high, as it has b~n 
findingjobs. Feder~'-.Reserve Board lately, the actual wage~ 

Chairmaii G. William · ceived by many Ameri
Miller, h 0 ,,·4 publicly cans mandatorily becomes 

zero dollars an hour. Be-
. cause they can't find wor)t. 

Exhibit F 

· - · We have already e~- -
\ cerbated this problem by 
l taking last year's $2.30 an 
\. hour to this year's $2.65. 
!WNow we plan to take the 

minimum up to $2.90 and 
\ .. eventually $3.35. As the 
( distinguished (and certifi
\ ably liberal) black econ~
\ mist, Andrew Brimmer, 
! has pointed out, the prac
\ tical effect weights partic
. ularly cruelly on the young 

and the black. U we don't 
cancel next year's furth~r 
step-up, we will add to the 
pressures on prices and we 
will add to unemploymen~, 

, but we won't help a single 
human being. . 

U President Carter is 
i serious about rethinking 

the ,inflationary errors ol 
i his first two years, here
\ as rancher W altenspiel 

might put it-would be· a 
mighcy fruitful place to 
start. 



40 THE W.-\LL STREET JOL'R:--1.-\L. Thur~.iy. Feb. I. 1979 E X HI BI ' 

---------Tracking a Trend--....;._ _____ ...,. 
- l • 

! Through Good Times and Bad, ]obless~s 
Among Young Blacks.Keeps Ri~ht On_ Rising 

. ♦-A Tale of Two Centers JBoredom. DropoutS. Dr1lp 
By .AU'an !.. MAuau J&. OlsSatlsfactioD with jobs prom.ms ~ a Poor-quality educallon is often m.entiO!led 

314!1 R,,portno/TIU w ..... snuTJan,,.u. In th remarks of Odessa !illl. as a factor tn the county's teen·are job prob-
Amid America's pl'OSl)erity, a depression g=t who i!aas a !KIii of !!P-' tem. Reffle Bernard say, the high school he 

IS in progms. - - quit "wasn' t wurth finishing." Bobby Vall!ll· . 
General business activity IS at . a record workers at an .. actton center" aimed •al tin. l6. says tllat Ills teachers ·· are so bad I 

level The economy Sl)&Wl!S more Jobs than flndlnr ll'Orit for Jobless teeti-arers iii a pov• ran asleep . all the time." Classes now .. .-er· 
. ever before. Yet.. consider the messare car, erty•riddm neighborhood jUSI north of ~11• lace lbout 35 studentJ :>e!' teacher. he says. 

r1ed In the adjoininr chart: amt. Her staff Will prollably bave to oe re, 'up from a ratio of 25•to-ODI! last year. The!;: · 
The rate of joblessness a.monr black duced in comlnr months. she complains. be- ;'ha ~ "school was more iaterest!nf. 

teen•aiers. cllmblnr wttll Ur:tie tnteffll\lnon cause pernmental funds for ber center i So tar this year. be reporu. 69 youths In his 
throuJb a quarter of a CeDlllJ'Y, llll1" IS close were recently tnmmed. Funds for another I are itOOP bave dropped out ot his school. 

. ta (OW' In 10. In far h!Jber th~ the co1111- such center 1n a somewhat more Pl'OSl)en>tll ; Orur use amOlli the students. be adds. IS 
try s overall llllellll)k,yment rue-ot one 1n neiJbborllood. s11e notes. nre recently In· wtdesi,read. 
tour-at tlle pit of the Great Oepressiall of creased. .- A special problem faces black teen-a,ers 
the mos. The tabla ·traces. by populatloa Georp o. Sarol. ~r ot tlle seaiad tn Dade County. The area a11o bas a ~ 
fl'OUP, t11e unempioymellt StDIY s111ce 195t. center. utrtbates !lie lncreue tn SIIPport- populal:ioll ot Cuban yooths wbo speak Span• 

l9Q lJ7I from $106.00I yearly to Slll.oot-to "our !sh as l1R!ll as Englisll. "The flffl qll8Slioll 
Black teea-agen 16.5~ ~ lood AQlld at flndlnc Jobi tor the yollllf [bey ask you in a Job Interview." says Enc 
Wblte -apn 12.1 1U people wbci come here." Tl1e center tr21ns Lowery, a. black 17•year-old. "ts: Are ~ 
AD blaeu u u.t lflD·apn ta drattsrnanllaiv, A recnt tlftll- blilqllal7" Erie's Jol>-._.itinr Wffltenas 
Black iMlllll r.maJa U 1U I iwa ot Ille f!ve-momll c:oime IIOW ear111 as a coolr's helper in a resta11rant-(ol'tll• · 
lllaek allalt malea U . U SS.50 au bo1ir tn the desicn de!laffmeat ot,.•. ;;;..;..;..;.;.;;,_..,;. _______ ~ 
Wlllte adlllt femaiae. 5.1 U Bupr IDllf Corp. In Miami. Aboat tllrft I nately doesll't ~ a kllowiedp of Span• 
AU wllha U U dozen yontlls apply tor tile H Opeuinp that !sh. The lllJII scllool Ile atteds otters a 
ft1te adlllt males U 3.7 come Ull at the start of each· COUl'H, · Mr, Spamsll course. he says. but few blacb tau 
Jobleauea amour black teen·as,n llu Sarol says.· Select1on IS 011 tlle buts of 31111· It. 

soared. but IJlle!llPIOymeat amoq wltlllt lllde tesa. · Many younr blacb SNm at a dlsadvan· 
tee11·arers. as nil aa amonc blacltJ eeaer- . These younr people. bownr, are mainly tap cturtnr Job 1nterv1ews. "Tile scllools 
ally, 1w r1Se11 Ollly moderately ~ 195t. whllll and CftM&ilY are trom homes wbe:e don't tncll tlle:se kids how to llandle diem
Jobless levels actually an dmoll ill two cate- at least .one parent halds a lall·tlme job. In selves and etve a p,d ai,pear:uu:e Wilm 
gortes-black adlllt males and wbite adlllt CODll'Ut. every yoolli interrtend at libs they' re t:ry\JIJ ta goet a job." say, Cornell 
main. Hill's centllr. recently wu black and fr&> 8!J1L a black law stUden.t at tile UniversitY 
No Improvemellt S1J1ce the Simnp q_uently from a home 011 welfare. Reuoaa· at Mlam1 w11o a1sJ does social won !Dr 

!!lacr t1en-qe unempk,yment tut year. bly typical ts ~ Bemanl. wbo reports Dade County. The problem ts 'indicated ill a 
thouJb very sllClltly Wider the l9TT Inel. that .. 11& bas been . lootin( for a YHr and a remark of Rldl Roblnma of. Sll?lff Kin,: 
wu preclsl!y as hlgt as in 1975. ,rtum the hail without snccen. The hiJll-school drop, "We look for the all·American boy look· 
last recesslDn 1111 boaom. and about taar out says that tbent ~ "just na Jobi wbe!l ,.. tntervtew a teen•ac-r for a job." 
percencap points blctitt than tn 1974. a yur . UOUlld" for lllm.. • Reqte Bernard ""'1idn't pass muster. 
ot ~ recessloll. Slnca 197-l, Iba rad . . A WOl'Selllllf problem for IIWIJ' Dade Re wars a ll'OOI c:ap. Indoors as .1"!!1 u om. 
for wblte tem-QlftS bas Inched down. Slll.ce Comity tae-qen ts tbe ·iJlaccesslbtUty ot aad ~r It his hair banp dDWII- In tong. 
1975. the joblesa rate for eftly otber.,roup netr jobs. "We ret wls about Job openiAp .;;;bralded==.;.;locb.=~-------
ln the. table bas fallen. The rata for blade wlleni lht posttloll would take hours for the 
men. has dropped from U.i'l'o to 8.6",. . lqds to reach and get home." says Miss Hill. 
• Official esttJDares of black teen·&111 1111· One YoUtb wtlllnr to spend some three llaurs 
emplayme!lt. !IIDreOVlll', may senousty an- daily ceutnr to and from his Job ls Andre 
derstale the situation. The published tl&'Dffl , Delaney. The 18-year-old black lives In 
overwllelmlJ1cty represent black tl!ltfll-qers, northwestern Miami and woru,-flve hours 
but also encompaa other nomrbites ..iio., a nt.rnt. at $3.50 an bour-tn a tarse hotel 
Jobless teft!s tend to be tower. In addUloa. south of the city. 01u1nr the day, be ts en-
it's wtdely arreed that ~ biddm llll· rolled at a hlJb school near Im home. -
em11Ioymant-j0blessaess not plcud up In; 
surveys-ts patec!!llarly prenlent anianr A Maxmmm -Problem 
blaclt YQU111s. The mlntmum wa~ presems dlfflcultles. 

The wiemploymmt rut for blaclt teen- AS it bas r!seD-from SUI! an bour ill 1978 to 
arers IS '"really SO"o .. or more,' malntlilll SU8 naw-some jobl once Ollell ta YtJIIIII' 
Vernon E. Jordan Jr •• prestdeat of lht Na• Dade Count)'.. blacis have either dried up or 
ttonaHJ'rballLeque. a ,odal-serTieei ~ been pbbed by .older. more capable Pft" 
HTVUIC malDly l.ow-tncome blacis. Whal· SIIS deddlnc to eater tlle labor force. 
ever the mie rue for black YQUtlls. Mr. Jor- Ammlr those interviewed ID Febraary 
du sees tllelr predlcameDt as a major rea· 19'17 wu Jollll Yantey, owner of a restau• 
son that " black America. today Vffll9 on rant tn a poor, black d1sa1cl in southern Ml· i 
the brink of a dlsUtff." · aml. At that iime. he employed three teen· / 

Why ban }'Ollllf blacb. tnl'OIICb tunes ol q!!!S. at a11out• the hourly mlnlmum at 
economic CtOWtll aa well aa In rec:es.tloat. $2.30, Be warned. however. that at least 
tared so badly In Iba tabor martet? ''t'JIO 'ffllld have to IIO" if the m1nimmD 
Btacta Are &re, Jobs Are There nre ralled 311predably. A relUl'II vilit tlndl 

AnalysU wtio mmittor the broad. natiorla! no teen•a,ers now employed there. Ola. M. 
;ilctuN otrar n.rtaus elqlla.natlallS. Govern• usier. ?dr. Manley's motber-111-law. helps 
mental Jobs programs don 't 1oc11s enourn 1ll 111m In tile kitchen and her sister -..irks at 
tnner-dty aeiJbbor1!ooc1s where black teei. the counter. "We writ ~r tree," Mn. La
aiers predomlllate. New jobs keep emel'finr1 ter says. "John couldn' t afford to keep the 
farther trom lmler-dtY areas. 111creues tg kids on :lllY lancer," -
tile mlnlmmn ware parttcwarly hurt )'QI Rich Rollillsoll. a personnel dlractor at 
blacks seettnr · wortc. Otllff fac!lll'S r-an,e Mlami-based 31.lrctr Kin&', repam that tile 
from Inadequate edllcatlonal iacilllles toi ace of pe0111e &!>in&' to work fllr !lie last·Cood 
·Job-ind!mew difflc:uitles. · dlaiD has been lislnf, aloo, with tile mini• I 

!lltel"'Tlnl With black teen-aprs. aa well mmn ware. 'The a=~ ~ at emptoyes In I 
u employers and soctal writers dealint di· the cbain's restautants has climbed. he est!· ,• 
rect1y wttll them. were recenttr C01ld1lcted mata. from " about 17 years a C:OUJ)le of 
tn Florida's Dade County. They te!ld to car- years ago to· dose to 20 now." -i:o offset ID· 
roborate the ~tlolla. An effort was . C?HS!nr -ce rates. he adds. "we're ,:om• · 
made to canvass the same- black. low-Ill- billlllC. . some Jobs. sue~. as bavln( cas!uers l 
come netchl)orboods covered tn t. report 011 also handle soft drtnb. 
teen•are joblllllleSS that appeared ill this Some teea·acers In Dade County, It 
paper OD F'eb. 9, 1977. sllould !)e added. ~!)Ort that Ibey would he 

uaemplaymel!t amonr YD1111C blacb bas , 'Nillinr to work for sut:Bta.r:cally le,s tllan 
toni been 3 ma::or problem in Dade County. tile minimum wa~. if they could only land 
The 1917 survey fowld tbat some w.-. of a job. Gwe!I Williams. a 1,;.year-Q!d black. , 

F 

C 

.. 
"' ... 
~ 

youths in the a.etpborhoods V!Slted W"ere I sa. ys: " I would wcrk for S. a.'! hour just ta I 
looktnr WISllccesstully tor writ. No compar- get some nperience." She is tookillr !or a 
able bead CDUIII was taken !low. but the in·, clmcal job but says tha t " :lie chances seem 
terviews do SUffffl :hat~ ffild likely be : V"Y sllm In this area." She ,ays that sbe 1 
too low a flrure today. I can rype close to 40 word3 a m1.11ute. , ?63 

Q:: 

l.iJ ... 
Q:: 
~ 

:::i 
0 

~ 

C: 
l.iJ 
::,. 

0 



( 

1 
2 
a 

' & 
e 
T 
8 
9 

·10 
11 
lJ 
a 
14 
16 
18 
17 
_l8 
18 
IO 
11 

(RBPIUNTED WITH ADOPTED ~MENTS) 

SECOND RBnINT · s. B. 385 

SE A TE BILL . 0. 38~MMITI'EE ON 
COMMERCE AND LABOR 

MARCH 27, 1979 

Referred to Committ~ on Commerce and Labor 

SUMMARY-Allows new application bv public utility for change of rate that ii 
part of pending application and abcililbcs reqwrement of poetiq new or 
amended iichechiJea at its stations. (BDR SS-1545) 

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Oovernment: No. . 
B1fect oo tho State_ or on Iodmtrial Imurance: No. 

AN ACT relaling to certain public utilities; revising provilionnatrictina coaaid
eration of applications for cba.oge of rate under certain circumstancca; abolilb
ing the i:e9uirement of posting new -or amended schedules in their ltatiom; 
and providing other matters properly reJating thereto. 

The People of the State of NevadD, repruented in Senau and Aaembly, 
do enact a, follows: 

SECTION 1. NRS 704.100 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
704.100 1. No changes [sballl may be made in any schedule, 

including schedules of joint rates, or m the rules and regulations affecting 
any land all] rates or charges, exceit upon 30 days' notice to the com
mission, and all [such changes shall clianges must be plainly indicated, 
or by filing new schedules in lieu thereof 30 days [prior to] before the 
time [the same] they are to take effect. The commissio~ upon applica
tion ol any public utility, may prescribe a less time within which a reduc
tion may be made. -

2. Copies of all new or amended schedules [shall] must be filed and 
posted in the [stations and] offices of' public utilities as in the case of 
original schedules. 

3. Except ·as provided in subsection 4, the commission shall not 
consider an application by a public utility if the justification for the new 
schedule includes any items of expense or rate base which are set forth 
as justification in a pending application, are the subject of pending litiga
tion [,] or Judicial review, or have been considered and disallowed by 
the commission or a district court. 

4. A public utility may set forth as justification for a rate increase 
items of expense or rate base which are the subject of f¥nding litigation 
or Judicial revin., or which have been considered and disallowed by the . . . 

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
2

dmayabb
bill in library



( 

(REPRINTED wrre ADOP'l'ED AMENDMEN'IS) 

SECOND REPRINT s. B. 386 · 

SENATE BILL NO. 386-COMMITIEE ON 
COMMERCE AND LABOR 

MARCH 27, 1979 

Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor 
SUMMAR.Y-Exempta additions to existi.na public utility plants from 

certain environmental requirementB. (BDR .S8-l.S46) 
F1SCAL NOTE: Effect on Loca1 Government: No. 

Effect OD tbe State or OD l.odustrial lmlurance: No. 

AN ACT relating to public utility regulation; limiting what is considered a utility 
facility for pu.rpo of the Utility Environmental Protectio.n Act; and pro-
vidiJla other matters properly relating thereto. • · 

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, 
do enact as follows: -

1 SECTION 1. NRS 704.860 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
2 704.860 "Utility facility" means: 
3 1. Electric generating plants and their associated facilities; 
4 2. Electric transmission linei and [their associated facilities of a 
5 designed capacity of 60 kilovolts] transmission substations designed to 
6 operate at 200 kilovolts or more, and-not [subject to undergrounding 
7 by local ordinances] required by local ordinance to be placed under-
8 ground when constructed outside any incorporated city; 
9 3. Gas transmission lines, storage plants, compressor stations and 

10 their associated facilities when constructed outside any incorporated 
11 city; 
12 4. Telephone, telegraph and CATV equipment buildings, their 
13 associated facilities and the sites thereof [J , when constructed outside 
14 any incorporated city; 
15 S. Water storage and transmission facilities; and 
J.6 6. Sewer transmission and treatment facilities. 

8 

/ 



SENATE BILL O. 358-SENATOR FAISS 

MARCH 22 1979 

S. B. 3S8 

Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor 

SUMMARY-Requires conaent of pati!nt before primary physician may engaae 
any consultin1 or additional pbysicaan for patient's treatment (BDR S4-l 194) 

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: o . 
.Effect oo the State or on Industrial Insurance: No. 

AN ACT relatin1 to medical care; requirina coment of a hospital patient before 
a consultin1 or additional physician ia enpged by bJs primuy physician, 
except m certain circumstances; requirin1 that the additional physician•, bill
ing be made throusb the primary physician; and providin1 other matten prop
erly relatin1 thereto. 

The People of the StaJe of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, 
do enact a, follows: 

1 SECTION 1., Chapter 630 of ~ is hereby amended by adding 
2 thereto a new sectioq. which shall reaa as follows: · 
3 1. Any physician. who is primarily responsible for the care and treat
• ment of a patient in a hospital shall, before securing the additional 
5 services for compensation of another physician as a consuluint or to 
6 assist in th'e care and treatment, obtain the consent of the patient, a 
1 parent or legal guardian. of the pati.ent, or other person responsible for 
8 the debts of the patient, except a, otherwise provided in subsection 3. 
9 2. The consent must be on a printed form, filled in with an explana-

10 lion in general terms of the need for securing the additional services, and 
11 the approximate fees which are lfkely to be charged for those services. The 
12 form must be signed by the patient or other authorized person. 
13 3. A physician who is treating a patient need not obtain the consent 
14 required by subsection 1 if: · 
15 (a) Obtaining the consent would delay treatment necessary to the 
16 patient's life or endanger the patient's health. 
17 (b) The pat_ient is unable to consent and a person authorized to con-
18 sent i.J not reasonably available. 
19 4. Whenever a physician provides such additional services, he must . 
20 present the bill for his fee directly to the primary physician, who shall 
21 cumultue all fees for such additional services and present a single bill 
22 to the patient. 

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
2

dmayabb
bill in library



(REPRINTED WITH ADOPTED AMENDMENTS) 

FIRST REPRINT S.B.387 

SENATE BILL NO. 387-COMMITTEE ON 
COMMERCE AND LABOR 

./ 
MARCH 27, 1979 

Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor 

SUMMARY~anges certain procedurct required of public utilities for increuecl 
rates and use of deferred accounting. (BDR 58-1544) 

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No. 
Effect on the State or on Industrial lnswance: No. 

l!DuNATION-Matter ID lllllla la ne,,,; matter ID brackCb [ J II matcrlaJ to be omitted. 

AN ACT relating to public utilities regulation; changing certain procedurca 
requ~ Jor an increase in rates and for the use of defcaed accouotiq; 
and providina other matters properly rclatina thereto. 

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, 
do enact as follows: 

1 SECTION 1. NRS 704.110 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
2 704.110 1. Whenever there is filed with the commission any sched-
3 ule stating a new or revised individual or joint rate, fare or charge, or 
, any new or revised individual or joint regulation or practice affecting 
5 any ntc, fare or charge, or any schedule resulting in a discontinuance, 
6 modification or restriction of service, the commission may, either upon 
7 complaint or upon its own motion without complaint, at once, and if it so 
8 orders, without answer or formal pleading by the interested utility, [or 
B utilities,] enter upon an investigation or, u_pon reasonable notice, enter 

10 upo~ a h~aring cooce~g ~e propriety of [sue~] th~ rate, far~, ~llrge, 
11 classificauon, regulati9n, discontmuance, modification, restriction or 
12 practice. 
13 2. Pending the investigation or hearing ·and the decision thereon, 
14 the commission, upon delivering to the utility [or utilities] affected 
15 thereby a statement in writing of its reasons for the suspension, may 
16 suspend the ·operation of [such] the schedule and defer the use of the 
17 rate, fare, charge, classification, regulation, discontinuance, modification, 
18 -restriction or practice, but not for a longer period th~ 150 days beyond 
19 the time when the rate, fare, charge, classification, regulation, mscon:. 
20 tinuance, modification, restriction or practice would otherwise go into 
21 effect. 
22 3. Whenever there is filed with the commission any schedule stat-
23 ing an increased individual or joint rate, fare or charge for service or 

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
3

dmayabb
bill in library



) · 

(REPRINTED WD'B ~ AMENDMENTS) 

FIRST REPRINT s. B. 388 

SENATE BILL NO. 38~MM11TBB ON 
COMMERCE AND LABOR 

M.uCH 27, 1979 

Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor 
SUMMAJtY-Allows deputy commissioner to conduct public bearinp upon direc

tion of public service commiision of Nevada. (BDR SS-IS:34) 
FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No. 

Effect on the State or on Industrial lmurance: Yea. 

AN ACT relating to the public service commission of Nevada: aTiowing the deputy 
commissioner to conduct certain public bearin,zs upon direction of the com
mission; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 

The People of the State of Nevada, repreJented in Senate and Assembly, 
do enact as follows: 

1 SECTION l. NRS 703.110 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
9 703.110 1. The majority of the commissioners [shall] have full 
I power to act in all matters within their juri diction. · 
4 2. If two commissioners are disqua1i.fied or if there are two vacancies 
I within the commission, the rema,ining commissioner shall exercise all the 
I powers of the commission. 
7 3. Public hearings [shall] must be conducted by one or more com
a missioners or when the commission so directs by the [secretarvl deputy 
9 commissioner, except as provided in this subsection, or. an administrativt 

10 assistant The deputy commissioner shall not hear cases involving a 
11 change of rares. 
11 SEc. 2. NRS 703.130 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
13 703.130 1. The commission shall appoint a' deputy commissioner 
14 who shall se111e in the unclass;fied service of the state. 
15 2. The commission shall appoint a secretary who shall perform such 
18 administrative and other duties as are prescribed by the commission. The 
17 commission shall also appoint an assistant ecretary. 
18 [2.] 3. The commission may employ such other clerks, experts or 
19 engineers as may be neces ary. Employees in the unclassified service of 
IO the state shall receive annual salaries in amounts determined pursuant to 
11 the provisions of NRS 284.182. 
n [3.] 4. The compensation o! the secretary and other employees 
ii shall be fixed in accordance with the provisions of chapter 284 of NRS. 

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
2

dmayabb
bill in library



f 

S. B. 377 

SENATE BILL NO. 377-SENATORS HERNSTADT 
AND McCORKLE 

MAllCH 26, 1979 -Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor 

SUMMARY-Repeals minimum wage laws. (BDR 53-1128) 
FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No. 

Bffect on the State or on Industrial Insurance: No. 

EXl'UN.&TJON-Matter In /talk.r ls new; matter ID bracketa ( ] Js material to be omlUed. 

AN ACT relating to labor; repealing the requirements for minimum wagies; and 
providing other matten properly relating thereto. 

The People of the State of Nevada, represe,:,ted in Senate and Assembly, 
do enact a, follow,: 

1 SECTION 1. RS 444.300 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
2 444.300 Any person empJoyed by a children's camp on a written con-
3 tract basis for a specified term longer than 1 week is exempt from the 
• provisions of [NRS 608.250 to 608.290, inclusive, and] chapter 609 of 
5 NRS relating to daily and weekly bow:s of labor only if [such] the camp 
6 is ope.rated by a nonprofit organization which is exempt from federal 
1 income tax under I.RC. § 501. 
8 SEC. 2. NRS 607.205 js hereby amended to read as follows: 
9 607.205 In aid of his enforcement responsibilities under the labor 

10 laws of the State of evada, including but not limited to NRS 338.030, 
11 607 .160 607 .170 [ 608.270] and chapter 61,1 of NR~ the labor com-
12 missioner or a person designated from the commi ioner's regular staff 
13 may conduct hearings and issue decision thereon in the manner pro-
14 vided by NRS 607 .207. 
15 SEC. 3. NRS 608.018 i hereby amended to read as follows: 
16 608.018 1. Except as provided in subsection 2, an employer shal). 
17 pay time and one-half of an employee's regular wage rate whenever ~ 
18 employee works: 
19 (a) More tban 40 boo.rs in any scbeduJed workweek· 
20 (b) More than 8 hours in any workday unless by mutoaJ agreement 
21 the employee works a scheduled 10 hou.rs per day for 4 calendar days 
22 within any scheduled workweek. 
23 · 2. The provisions of subsection 1 do not apply to: 
24 (a) [Employees who a.re not covered by the minimum wage provisions 
25 of NRS. 608.250; · 

770 

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
2

dmayabb
bill in library



r 

{ 

S. J. R.17 

SENATE JOINT RESOLQTiO NO. 17--COMMITTEE 0 
COMMERCE AND LABOR 

MARCH 28, 1979 

Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labqr 
, 

SUMMAR.Y-llequests United t,Jtes S;eaetary of. Defense and Secretary of the 
Army to maintain ataffill8 of. -civil servi~ employees at Hawthorne Army 
Ammunition Punt. (BD.R L949) 

. 
Sl!NATE JOINT llBSOLUTION-ltequeating the 1United States Secretary of 

Defense and Secretary of tho Army to maintain the- staffing of civil servjcc 
employees at the Hawthorne- Anny Ammunition ~ant. 

1 WHEREAS, The United States Naval Ammunition Depot at Hawthorne, 
2 Nevada, was commissioned on September 15, 1930, as the United States 
3 Naval Ammunition Depot; and on October 1, 1977, the depot was trans- · 
4 ferred to the Department of the Army and became the Hawthorne Army 
5 Ammunition Plant; and 
6 WHEREAS, A combination of military and civil service employees have 
7 effectively, efficiently and economically performed all tasks assigned to 
8 them since the plant was originally COlllDllssioned; and 
9 WHEREAS, The combined military and civil service work force has 

10 establis}Jed an outstanding and enviable record of work and loyalty, 
11 particulary during the periods of national peril, including World War II, 
12 the Korean war and the war in Viet Nam; and 
13 . WHEREAS, The Hawthorne Army Ammunition Plant constitutes the 
14 principal economic strength of the community of Hawthorne, Nevada; 
15 and 
16 WHEREAS, A majority of the civil se~ce employees of the depot have 
17 purchased homes and property in Hawthorne, Nevada, and have invested 
18 tlieir entire future in that community; and 
19 WHB.REAS, The businesses of the community, as well as the schools and 
20 churches, the civic and fraternal groups and the entities of local govem-
21 ment have developed their activities to serve and are dependent upon. a 

' 22 stable civil service work force at the ammunition depot; and 
23 WHBllBAS, li the present work force were to be replaced with a work 
24 force employed on a contractual basis, the change would eause transient 
25 and sporadic perj.ods of employment, having an adverse effect on the 
26 stability of Hawthorne and Mineral County; and 

771 

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
2

dmayabb
bill in library




